Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form C)

Sircles Media, Inc.
1590 Howe Ave
Sacramento, CA 95825
www.sircles.com

Up to $3,942,045.56 in Community Preferred Stock at $0.84
Minimum Target Amount: $19,999.56

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless you can afford to lose yvour
entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the terms of the offering,
including the merits and risks involved. These securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state
securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or
adequacy of this document.

The U.5. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any securities offered or the terms of the
offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5. Securities and Exchange Commission
has not made an independent determination that these securities are exempt from registration.

In the event that we become a reporting company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we intend to take advantage of
the provisions that relate to "Emerging Growth Companies” under the JOBS Act of 2012, including electing to delay
compliance with certain new and revised accounting standards under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,



Company:

Company: Sircles Media, Inc.

Address: 1590 Howe Ave, Sacramento, CA 95825
state of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: December 12, 2019

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $19,999.56 | 23,809 shares of Community Preferred Stock
Offering Maximum: $3,942,043.56 | 4,692,909 shares of Community Preferred Stock
Type of Security Offered: Community Preferred Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: 50,84

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $248.64

*Maximum number of shares offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See Bonus info below,
Investment Incentives & Bonuses®

Loyalty Bonus

To reward vour loyalty as a repeat investor, you are eligible for 50% bonus shares.

*Eligibility for loyalty bonuses will be verified using records from prior WeFunder investors,

Time-Based Perks

Early Bird 1: Invest $1,000 or more within the first week | Receive access to the exclusive Sircles Investor Community Chat
inside the app plus an additional 10% bonus shares

Early Bird 2: Invest $2,500 or more within the first week | Receive all prior perks + an exclusive StartEngine Badge displaved
on your Sircles profile, plus an additional 20% bonus shares

Early Bird 3: Invest $10,000 or more within the first week | Receive all prior perks + a Verified Blue Checkmark on your
Sircles profile, plus an additional 50% bonus shares

Mid-Campaign Perks (Flash Perks)

Flash Perk 1: Invest $700 or more between days 21-28 and receive 5% bonus shares
Flash Perk 2: Invest $300 or more on day 45 and receive 3% bonus shares

Flash Perk 3: Invest $1,000+ or more on day 45 and receive 10% bonus shares
Amount-Based Perks

Winner's Sircle: Invest 350,000 or more | Receive access to the exclusive Sircles Investor Community Chat, an exclusive

startEngine Badge displayed on your Sircles profile, a Verified Blue Checkmark on yvour Sircles profile inside the app, and
50% bonus shares.

Inner Sircle: Invest $100,000 or more | Receive all prior perks, plus 100% bonus shares
*Stacking & Eligibility Rules

- Lovalty bonuses may be combined with either a time-based or an amount-based perk. - Time-based and amount-based
perks cannot be combined.

- The maximum bonus shares is 160%.

- Eligibility for lovalty bonuses will be verified using records from prior WeFunder investors. - All investments must be
single investments meeting the minimum perk requirement. - Bonuses and discounts from perks will not be granted if an
investor submits multiple smaller investments that, when combined, meet the perk threshold.

- All perks occur when the offering is completed.

In order to receive perks from an investment, one must submit a single investment in the same offering that meets the
minimum perk requirement. Bonus shares from perks will not be granted it an investor submits multiple investments that,



when combined, meet the perk requirement. All perks occur when the offering is completed.

Crowdfunding investments made through a self-directed IRA cannot receive non-bonus share perks due to tax laws, The
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) prohibits self-dealing transactions in which the investor receives an immediate, personal
financial gain on investments owned by their retirement account. As a result, an investor must refuse those non-bonus
share perks because they would be receiving a benefit from their IRA account.

The 10% StartEngine Venture Club Bonus

Sircles Media, Inc. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments that are committed by investors that are
eligible for the StartEngine Venture Club.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares they purchase in this offering. For
example, if you buy 100 shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock at $.84 / share, yvou will receive 110 shares of Series Seed
Preferred Stock, meaning you’ll own 110 shares for $84.00. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will
be determined by rounding down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investor's eligibility period. Investors eligible for this bonus will also have priority if
they are on a waitlist to invest and the company surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to
invest should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will receive the highest single bonus they are eligible for among the bonuses based on the amount invested and
the time of offering elapsed (if any). Eligible investors will also receive the Venture Club bonus and the Loyalty Bonus in
addition to the aforementioned bonus.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview
Company Overview

Sircles Media, Inc. is a Delaware corporation operating a positive-first social networking platform designed to connect users
through shared interests and trusted recommendations. The company offers a mobile application that facilitates
community building, event coordination, and business discovery while emphasizing constructive interactions and authentic
connections.

Business Model

Sircles generates revenue through multiple streams including business subscription services that provide profile
management, analytics, and promotional tools; affiliate and partner-driven commerce; Sircles branded merchandise. The
Company is considering other revenue streams from event sponsorships and partnerships with venues and brands, local
influencers, loyalty programs, future premium user features through in-app purchases, along with integrated point-of-sale
systems for local businesses that offer analytics and engagement tools. The Company believes its early deals validate
commercial demand for attention and engagement on Sircles, while also demonstrating that creators and influencers can
derive value by moving their audiences into Sircles for closer connection. The Company is not scaling any revenue channels
yet because they are not necessarily the long-term commercial model. The focus now is community density, after which the
Company anticipates the best monetization path will become clearer. Between business profiles, boosted placements,
events, venue partnerships, SMB tools, creator monetization, and advertising, the Company believes it has several viable
and partially validated monetization paths, and that the question is not whether Sircles can monetize, but which path will
be the highest leverage at scale.

Intellectual Property

The company has filed patent applications for its proprietary chat and topic-sharing technology, which enables organized
group communications through a dynamic system of pinned subtopics within main chat rooms. This technology
differentiates Sircles’ approach to community organization and information sharing. The company also maintains
trademark protection for its brand and has a trademark for its slogan “Caring is Sharing”, and operates under the app name
"Sircles” and domain name Sircles.com.

Corporate History

Sircles Media, Inc. was originally formed as Social Circle LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, on February 12, 2018.
The company converted to a Delaware corporation and changed its name to Sircles Media, Inc. effective December 15, 2019.
The Company's leadership team also owns and operates Tech Service 2U, Inc. (Tech 2U), a related party under common
control. The Company engages Tech 2U for certain technical, operational, and promotional services. A summary of these
related-party transactions is provided in the Related Party Transactions section of this Form C.

Competitors and Industry



Competitors

Sircles operates in the competitive social networking and local discovery space alongside established platforms including
Meta's Facebook and Instagram, which dominate general social networking; Nextdoor, which focuses on neighborhood
communities; Meetup, which specializes in event-based gatherings; Discord and GroupMe, which provide community chat
functionality; and Yelp, which offers business reviews and recommendations. Sircles differentiates itself through its
positive-first approach, integrated event management, recommendation-based business discovery, and patent-pending
group chat organization system.

Industry

The company operates within the global social networking market, estimated at over $250 billion, and the local event and
business promotion sector, valued at approximately $60 billion. The addressable market includes collaborative and
promotional software tools estimated at $40 billion. Consumer demand is shifting toward community-based, interest-
driven platforms that prioritize authenticity and smaller community spaces over algorithm-driven feeds, particularly among
Gen Z and Millennial users who report concerns about online negativity impacting engagement.

Current Stage and Roadmap
Current Stage

Sircles has launched 108 and Android applications and is in active growth stage with measurable user traction. The platform
has facilitated over one million core engagement value events, maintains a 4.7-star rating on app stores, and reports 35%
monthly user retention amongst engaged users. The company has established partnerships with businesses, venues, and
event organizations including LVIN for spring break programming. The company has over 100 web and business
subscribers, and the platform has generated over 1,000 RSVPs for individual events.

Future Roadmap

The company's strategic plan focuses on scaling to millions of active users through expansion of its ambassador program,
formation of strategic influencer partnerships, development of vertical communities around specific interests such as
sports, travel, and music, and continued product iteration based on user feedback. Near-term priorities include executing a
nationwide spring break initiative across 100+ campuses, implementing point-of-sale integrations for local businesses, and
enhancing platform features to drive retention and network effects. The company may explore potential liguidity
opportunities, such as a public offering or strategic transaction, as the business matures; however, any such outcome is
uncertain and will depend on a variety of factors outside the company’s control, including market conditions, operational
performance, and the company’s ability to achieve its long-term objectives,

The Team

Officers and Directors

Name: John D Worthington
John D Worthington's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

# Position: Co-Founder, CEQ
Dates of Service: February, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: John runs the engineering team daily, manages advertising and promotional activities, assists in
designs and feature implementations, implements strategies and vision. John currently receives an annual salary of
$84,000 and owns equity in the company.

Other business experience in the past three years:

o Employer: Tech 2U
Title: CEO
Dates of Service: August, 2003 - Present
Responsibilities: John created and managed all the advertising campaigns, hired and managed employees, created
training manuals and set goals for employees. John is still the owner but does not manage the day-to-day operations
of the company.

Name: Todd M Fiore

Todd M Fiore's current primary role is with the Issuer.



Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

= Position: C10, President
Dates of Service: February, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: Co-Founder, President & CIO at Sircles — aligning technology, operations, and community growth
while supporting partnerships that connect people through shared experiences. Todd is still the owner but does not
manage the day-to-day operations of the company. Todd currently receives an annual salary of $24,000 and owns
equity in the company.

Other business experience in the past three vears:

¢ Employer: Tech 2U
Title: Co-Founder, CIO
Dates of Service: August, 2003 - Present
Responsibilities: Co-Founder of Tech 2U, a leading IT and computer repair company established in 2003, Now serving
in an advisory role, [ participate in executive meetings to provide strategic guidance and support long-term objectives.

Name: Danny T Hinkle
Danny T Hinkle's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

# Position: Co-Founder, COO
Dates of Service: February, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: I serve as Co-Founder and Chief Operating Officer of Sircles, overseeing product development,
operations, and strategic growth initiatives. Danny current receives an annual salary of $92,400 and owns equity in the
company.

Other business experience in the past three years:

o Emplovyer: Tech 2U
Title: Sub Contractor
Dates of Service: August, 2012 - Present
Responsibilities: | serve in an advisory capacity at Tech 2ZU, participating in weekly executive meetings to review high-
level objectives and provide strategic guidance.

Name: Michael B Nashick

Michael B Nashick's current primary role is with Tech 2U. Michael B Nashick currently services 20 hours per week in their
role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

* Position: Chief Financial Officer
Dates of Service: February, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversees the company’s accounting and financial reporting functions and the accuracy of its
financial records. Confers with the Chief Operating Officer regarding budget matters and disburses funds as
authorized by the board of directors or other officers. Michael receives an annual salary of $38,400 and owns equity in
the company.

Other business experience in the past three years:

= Employer: Tech 2U
Title: Controller
Dates of Service: September, 2008 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversees the company’s accounting and financial reporting functions to ensure the accuracy of its
financial records.

Name: lan | Reeder

lan | Reeder's current primary role is with Tech 2U. lan | Reeder currently services 5 hours per week in their role with the
[ssuer.



Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

= Position: Secretary
Dates of Service: February, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: I'm secretary of the board, | handle the traditional role and requirements of the Secretary. lan
receives an annual salary of 14,400 and owns equity in the company.

Other business experience in the past three vears:

* Employer: Tech 2U

Title: General Manager
Dates of Service: March, 2008 - Present

Responsibilities: Managing day to day operations, overseeing all retail locations.

Name: Jordan K Baldwin

Jordan K Baldwin's current primary role is with Ridgeline Engineering. Jordan K Baldwin currently services 1 hours per week
in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

+ Position: Board Member
Dates of Service: May, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Investor and advisor, Jordan does not receive compensation for his role.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Emplover: Ridgeline Engineering
Title: CEO
Dates of Service: April, 2004 - Present
Responsibilities: Direct all operations and growth.

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its financial condition. The company is
still subject to all the same risks that all companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and technological developments (such as
hacking and the ability to prevent hacking). Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more
developed companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, "us”, “our”, or the “Company™) involves a high degree of risk and
should only be considered by those who can afford the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any
securities should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are sufficient to enable them to indefinitely
retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in the Company should research thoroughly any offering before making an
investment decision and consider all of the information provided regarding the Company as well as the following risk
factors, in addition to the other information in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not intended, and shall
not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial, financial, and other risks inherent in the investment in the
Company.

ko

Our business projections are only projections and depend heavily on user adoption rates.

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet its projections. Our financial models rely on assumptions regarding
user growth, viral coefficients, and retention rates which may not materialize. There can be no assurance that the Company
will be able to find sufficient demand for its product, or that users will prefer Sircles over established competitors like Yelp
or TikTok. Even if we achieve user growth, we may not be able to monetize that user base effectively enough to become
profitable or grow the business.

Any valuation is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed companies that are valued publicly through
market-driven stock prices, the valuation of private companies, especially early-stage companies like Sircles, is subjective.
The Company analyzed factors such as our technology, intellectual property, stage of development, and industry trends to
determine the pricing. However, this valuation has not been validated by an independent third-party appraiser or by the



public markets. As a result, the price you pay for your investment may be significantly higher than the value that would be
established by a market for our securities, and vou may risk overpaying.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12 months following your investment,
there will be restrictions on the securities you purchase. More importantly, there are a limited number of established
markets for the resale of these securities. As a result, if vou decide to sell these securities in the future, you may not be able
to find, or may have difficulty finding, a buyer, and you may have to locate an interested buyer when you do seek to resell
your investment. The Company may be acquired by an existing player in the industry. However, that may never happen or it
may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12 months following your investment,
there will be restrictions on how you can resell the securities vou receive. More importantly, there are limited established
markets for these securities. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities in the future, you may not be able to find a
buyer. The Company may be acquired by an existing player in the same or a similar industry. However, that may never
happen or it may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

The Company may undergo a future change that could affect your investment

The Company may change its business, management or advisory team, IP portfolio, location of its principal place of
business or production facilities, or other change which may result in adverse effects on your investment. Additionally, the
Company may alter its corporate structure through a merger, acquisition, consolidation, or other restructuring of its current
corporate entity structure. Should such a future change occur, it would be based on management’s review and
determination that it is in the best interests of the Company.

Your information rights are limited with limited post-closing disclosures

The Company is required to disclose certain information about the Company, its business plan, and its anticipated use of
proceeds, among other things, in this offering. Early-stage companies may be able to provide only limited information
about their business plan and operations because it does not have fully developed operations or a long history to provide
more disclosure, The Company is also only obligated to file information annually regarding its business, including financial
statements. [n contrast to publicly listed companies, investors will be entitled only to that post-offering information that is
required to be disclosed to them pursuant to applicable law or regulation, including Regulation CF. Such disclosure
generally requires only that the Company issue an annual report via a Form C-AR. Investors are generally not entitled to
interim updates or financial information.

some early-stage companies may lack professional guidance

Some companies attribute their success, in part, to the guidance of professional early-stage advisors, consultants, or
investors (e.g., angel investors or venture capital firms). advisors, consultants, or investors may play an important role in a
company through their resources, contacts, and experience in assisting early-stage companies in executing their business
plans. An early-stage company primarily financed through Regulation Crowdfunding may not have the benefit of such
professional investors, which may pose a risk to your investment.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

The Company is offering Community Preferred Stock in the amount of up to $3,942,043.56 in this offering, and may close on
any investments that are made. Even if the maximum amount is raised, the Company is likely to need additional funds in
the future in order to grow, and if it cannot raise those funds for whatever reason, including reasons relating to the
Company itself or the broader economy, it may not survive. If the Company manages to raise only the minimum amount of
funds sought, it will have to find other sources of funding for some of the plans outlined in “Use of Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may need to raise more capital.

We anticipate needing significant additional capital to support our user acquisition, engineering, and operational costs. It is
difficult for early-stage social platforms to obtain traditional credit (bank loans) on favorable terms, so we will likely relyv on
selling more equity to raise funds. If we raise additional funds by issuing new shares, vour ownership percentage in the
Company will be reduced (diluted). Furthermore, if we are forced to raise capital during a market downturn or when our
growth metrics are not meeting expectations, we may have to sell shares at a lower price than what you paid (a "down
round”). This would not only dilute your percentage ownership but also lower the value of your investment. If we cannot
raise sufficient funds when needed, we may be forced to reduce our operating expenses, delay feature releases, or cease
operations entirely.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact yvour investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in the future, which may reduce the
value of your investment in the Company. Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Community Preferred Stock could be issued in series from time to time with such designation, rights, preferences,
and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than
to the holders of common stock or other securities. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to be more favorable than the terms of
your investment, and possibly a lower purchase price per security.



Management's Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our management team with respect to the
application and allocation of the proceeds of this offering. The Use of Proceeds described below is an estimate based on our
current business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions of the net proceeds reserved
for one category to another, and we will have broad discretion in doing so.

Projections and forward-looking information are hypothetical and subject to significant uncertainty.

Any projections or forward-looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or operational performance are
hypothetical and are based on management’s best estimate of the possible results of our operations. These estimates are
based on assumptions that management believes are reasonable; however, many assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management’s control. Therefore, actual results of
operations will vary from such projections, and such variances may be material. You should not place undue reliance on
these forward-looking statements, and we offer no guarantee that anv specific result will be achieved.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or immediate family members
Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the Company (or their immediate family
members) may make investments in this offering. Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on
the campaign page.

We depend entirely on the success of the Sircles mobile application.

Our future growth and profitability depend on the market acceptance and use of a single product: the Sircles mobile
application. We do not have a diversified portfolio of products or revenue streams. If user demand for social-based
recommendation platforms declines, or if a competitor renders our specific approach obsolete, we do not have alternative
business lines to rely upon. Any significant decline in the popularity, usage, or monetization potential of the Sircles app
would have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

Developing new features and technologies entails significant risks and uncertainties.

We operate in a competitive market where we must constantly innovate to keep up with competitors. We are currently in a
continuous stage of research and development to refine our mobile application. Delays or cost overruns in the development
of our product, or failure of the product to meet our performance estimates, may be caused by, among other things,
unanticipated technological hurdles, software bugs, server scalability issues, integration challenges with third-party APIs,
or changes to design. Additionally, we rely on the timely review and approval of app updates by the Apple App Store and
Google Play Store. Any of these events could materially and adversely affect our operating performance and results of
operations.

Software defects or harmful user-generated content could damage our reputation.

The quality of our mobile application depends on our ability to write bug-free code and maintain a stable server
environment. Software bugs, crashes, or slow performance can result in user dissatisfaction, negative App Store reviews,
and user churn. Furthermore, as a social platform, "safety” refers to the protection of our users from harassment, hate
speech, or inappropriate content. If we fail to effectively moderate user-generated content or if our algorithms
inadvertently promote harmful material, we could face public backlash, regulatory scrutiny, or removal from App Stores.
Any failure to maintain the technical quality of the app or the safety of the community could harm our brand and reduce our
revenue.

Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights

The Community Preferred Stock that an investor is buying has voting rights attached to them. However, vou will be part of
the minority shareholders of the Company and therefore will have a limited ability to influence management's decisions on
how to run the business. You are trusting in management's discretion in making good business decisions that will grow your
investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation of our company, vou will only be paid out if there is any cash
remaining after all of the creditors of our company have been paid out.

Management has broad discretion and may make decisions you disagree with.

Our management team has full discretion over the Company's daily operations and strategic direction. As a minority
shareholder, vou will not have the ability to influence these decisions, Management may make decisions regarding
marketing, product development, or hiring that prove to be unsuccessful or that vou personally disagree with. By investing,
you acknowledge that the success of the Company relies largely on the business judgment of the management team, and
that business strategies are subject to change and may not produce the desired results.

We may not raise enough capital to survive, even if this offering is successful.

The Company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its immediate operating needs or fulfill its business
plan. If we are unable to raise sufficient funds, we may be forced to cease operations, resulting in a total loss of your
investment. Furthermore, even if we sell the maximum amount of Community Preferred Stock in this offering, we will likely
need to raise substantial additional capital in the future to fund our growth. If we are unable to secure future funding when
needed, the Company could fail. Additionally, even if we successfully raise funds in the future, the terms of those new
securities may be superior to the terms of the securities vou hold, potentially reducing the value of your investment,



This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may not have the benefit of information
that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine instruct the escrow agent to disburse
offering funds to us. At that point, investors whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors.
All early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not uncommeon for material changes
to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’ businesses, plans, or prospects, sometimes with little or no notice. When
such changes happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amendment to our Form C with the SEC, and
investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their
money back. Investors whose subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and will have
no such right.

Non-accredited investors may not be eligible to participate in a future merger or acquisition of the Company and may lose a
portion of their investment

Investors should be aware that under Rule 145 under the Securities Act of 1933 if they invest in a company through
Regulation CrowdFunding and that company becomes involved in a merger or acquisition, there may be significant
regulatory implications. Under Rule 145, when a company plans to acquire another and offers its shares as part of the deal,
the transaction may be deemed an offer of securities to the target company's investors, because investors who can vote (or
for whom a proxy is voting on their behalf) are making an investment decision regarding the securities they would receive.
All investors, even those with non-voting shares, may have rights with respect to the merger depending on relevant state
laws. This means the acquirer’s “offer” to the target’s investors would require registration or an exemption from
registration (such as Reg. D or Reg. CF), the burden of which can be substantial. As a result, non-accredited investors may
have their shares repurchased rather than receiving shares in the acquiring company or participating in the acquisition.
This may result in investors® shares being repurchased at a value determined by a third party, which may be at a lesser value
than the original purchase price. Investors should consider the possibility of a cash buyout in such circumstances, which
may not be commensurate with the long-term investment they anticipate.

Our growth projections rely on user adoption and viral growth, which are difficult to predict.

Our business plans rely heavily on the assumption that increasing our advertising and marketing budget will result in a
corresponding increase in user growth and engagement for the Sircles platform. However, user adoption is unpredictable. It
is possible that our mobile application will fail to gain widespread market acceptance due to intense competition, user
fatigue, or a failure of our specific "recommendation” features to resonate with the broader public. If our marketing efforts
fail to drive the user acquisition and retention rates we project, or if our "customer acquisition costs” (CAC) are higher than
anticipated, we may not achieve the scale necessary to monetize the platform effectively, which would materially and
adversely impact the value of your investment.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies that currently have products on the market and/or various respective
product development programs. They may have much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources
than us. They may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than us, or superior products
than those developed by us, There can be no assurance that competitors will not render our technology or products obsolete
or that the products developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It should further be
assumed that competition will intensify.

We are competing against major platforms in the attention economy.

Although Sircles offers a unique value proposition focused on trusted recommendations, we compete directly for user time
and attention against established social media and review platforms. Our primary competitors include major industry
incumbents such as Yelp, TikTok, Facebook, and Instagram. Our business growth depends on our ability to capture market
interest and user screen time away from these dominant, highly engaging platforms.

We are an early stage company and have not yet generated any profits

sircles Media, Inc. was formed on February 12, 2018. Accordingly, the Company has a limited history upon which an
evaluation of its performance and future prospects can be made. Our current and proposed operations are subject to all
business risks associated with new enterprises. These include likely fluctuations in operating results as the Company reacts
to developments in its market, managing its growth and the entry of competitors into the market. We will only be able to
pay dividends on any shares once our directors determine that we are financially able to do so. Sircles Media, Inc. has
incurred a net loss and has had limited revenues generated since inception, if any. There is no assurance that we will be
profitable in the near future or generate sufficient revenues to pay dividends to our shareholders.

We have a limited history of commercial operations and have not vet generated profit.

Although the Company was formed on February 12, 2018, much of our history has been dedicated to the research,
development, and beta testing of the Sircles platform. As a result, we have a limited history of commercial operations upon
which an evaluation of our prospects and future performance can be made. We are still in the early stages of user
acquisition and monetization. Our current and proposed operations are subject to all business risks associated with early-
stage enterprises. There can be no assurance that we will generate sufficient revenue to achieve or sustain profitability in
the future.



Intense Market Competition

The market in which the company operates is highly competitive, with established players, emerging startups, and potential
future entrants. The presence of competitors can impact the company’s ability to attract and retain customers, gain market
share, and generate sustainable revenue. Competitors with greater financial resources, brand recognition, or established
customer bases may have a competitive advantage, making it challenging for the company to differentiate itself and achieve
long-term success.

Vulnerability to Economic Conditions

Economic conditions, both globally and within specific markets, can significantly influence the success of early-stage
startups. Downturns or recessions may lead to reduced consumer spending, limited access to capital, and decreased demand
for the company's products or services. Additionally, factors such as inflation, interest rates, and exchange rate fluctuations
can affect the cost of raw materials, operational expenses, and profitability, potentially impacting the company's ability to
operate.

Uncertain Regulatory Landscape

Due to the unestablished nature of the market the business operates within, the potential introduction of new laws or
industry-specific standards can impose additional costs and operational burdens on the company. Non-compliance or legal
disputes may result in fines, penalties, reputational damage, or even litigation, adversely affecting the company's financial
condition and ability to operate effectively.

Failure to protect our intellectual property or proprietary rights could harm our competitive position.

We rely on a combination of pending patents, trademarks, copyrights, and trade secrets to protect our brand and
technology. However, the legal standards relating to IP are uncertain. There is no guarantee that our pending patent
applications will result in issued patents, or that our trademarks will not be challenged or invalidated.

Trade Secrets & Employees

We also rely heavily on trade secrets and proprietary know-how. We require employees and consultants to execute
confidentiality agreements, but we cannot guarantee that these agreements will not be breached or that we will have
adequate remedies for any breach. Competitors may also independently develop similar technology without violating our
rights.

Cost of Enforcement

Furthermore, enforcing our rights against infringers can be prohibitively expensive. We may not have the financial
resources to prosecute a multi-year litigation battle against a well-funded competitor. If we are unable to enforce our IP due
to cost, or if competitors successfully design around our technology, our ability to compete would be materially and
adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other highly qualified personnel in the
future, could harm our business

Our business depends on our ability to attract, retain, and develop highly skilled and qualified employees. As we grow, we
will need to continue to attract and hire additional employees in various areas, including sales, marketing, design,
development, operations, finance, legal, and human resources. However, we may face competition for qualified candidates,
and we cannot guarantee that we will be successful in recruiting or retaining suitable employees. Additionally, if we make
hiring mistakes or fail to develop and train our emplovees adequately, it could have a negative impact on our business,
financial condition, or operating results. We may also need to compete with other companies in our industry for highly
skilled and qualified employees. If we are unable to attract and retain the right talent, it may impact our ability to execute
our business plan successfully, which could adversely affect the value of your investment. Furthermore, the economic
environment may affect our ability to hire qualified candidates, and we cannot predict whether we will be able to find the
right emplovees when we need them. This would likely adversely impact the value of vour investment.

Our business depends on access to third-party distribution platforms and compliance with evolving domestic and
international regulations.

Our ability to distribute the Sircles application is dependent on maintaining our presence on digital storefronts, primarily
the Apple App Store and Google Play Store. These platforms operate under domestic policies that are subject to change at
the sole discretion of the platform providers. A violation of these internal guidelines—or a change in platform policy
regarding data collection, location tracking, or social networking features—could result in the removal of our application,
limiting our ability to reach users in our home market. Furthermore, the social media industry is subject to a complex
framework of domestic and foreign government regulations. Federal or state-level authorities in the United States, as well
as foreign governments, may enact laws regarding data privacy, age verification, or consumer protection that clash with our
operating model. If we are unable to adapt to new regulatory standards or App Store compliance requirements, we may face
bans, fines, or removal from distribution channels, which would materially adversely affect our business and financial
condition.

We rely on third-party software and infrastructure providers essential to the operation of our platform.

Our business relies heavily on a variety of third-party software services, open-source libraries, and infrastructure providers.
specifically, we utilize Amazon Web Services (AWS) and Google Cloud Services for cloud hosting, OneSignal for push
notifications, Amplitude for data analytics, Sentry for error tracking, and various React Native libraries for our application



framework. Our ability to maintain high-quality operations depends on the continuous uptime, support, and security of
these third-party platforms. Any failure, service outage, security breach, or discontinuation of support by these vendors
could have a material adverse effect on our business. We have limited control over these third-party providers, and they
may alter their terms of service, pricing, or API functionality at any time, requiring us to dedicate significant resources to
finding replacements or re-engineering our application.

The Company is vulnerable to hackers and cyber-attacks

As an internet-based business, we may face risks related to cybersecurity and data protection. We rely on technology
systems to operate our business and store and process sensitive data, including the personal information of our investors.
Any significant disruption or breach of our technology systems, or those of our third-party service providers, could result in
unauthorized access to our systems and data, and compromise the security and privacy of our investors. Moreover, we may
be subject to cyber-attacks or other malicious activities, such as hacking, phishing, or malware attacks, that could result in
theft, loss, or destruction of our data, disruption of our operations, or damage to our reputation. We may also face legal and
regulatory consequences, including fines, penalties, or litigation, in the event of a data breach or cyber-attack, Any
significant disruption or downtime of our platform, whether caused by cyber-attacks, system failures, or other factors, could
harm our reputation, reduce the attractiveness of our platform, and result in a loss of investors and issuer companies.
Moreover, disruptions in the services of our technology provider or other third-party service providers could adversely
impact our business operations and financial condition. This would likely adversely impact the value of your investment,

Economic and market conditions

The Company’s business may be affected by economic and market conditions, including changes in interest rates, inflation,
consumer demand, and competition, which could adversely atfect the Company's business, financial condition, and
operating results,

Rewards System Risk

The Company plans to offer users merchandise, discounts, and other incentives to encourage engagement with the app.
These programs may result in significant and unpredictable expenses because the cost of such rewards depends on user
adoption and activity levels, which the Company cannot reliably estimate. Although the Company may implement user
agreements or other limitations intended to control these costs, such measures may not be effective. As a result, the
Company may incur expenses that materially harm our financial condition, operating results, and investor value.

Reputational Damage Risk

Users or third parties may post negative, misleading, or defamatory statements about the Company, its products, or its
personnel on public websites, social media, or online forums. Such statements may be anonymous and difficult or
impossible to remove or legally address. Negative publicity could damage the Company’s reputation, reduce user growth,
impair investor perception, and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and the value of your
investment.

Force majeure events

The Company’s operations may be affected by force majeure events, such as natural disasters, pandemics, acts of terrorism,
war, or other unforeseeable events, which could disrupt the Company's business and operations and adversely affect its
financial condition and operating results.

Adverse publicity
The Company's business may be negatively impacted by adverse publicity, negative reviews, or social media campaigns that
could harm the Company's reputation, business, financial condition, and operating results.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership
The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the company’s holders of 20% or more of any
class of voting securities as of the date of this Offering Statement filing.

Stockholder HumeINumher of Securities Owned|Type of Security Owned|Percentage
John Worthington |8|5ﬂﬂl:ﬂﬂ Class A Common Stock |88.2%

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock, Series Seed Preferred Stock, Community
Preferred Stock, SAFE, SAFE, SAFE, SAFE, SAFE, SAFE, SAFE, and SAFE. As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the
Company will be offering up to 4,692,909 of Community Preferred Stock.

Class A Common Stock
The amount of security authorized is 9,000,000 with a total of 8,600,000 outstanding.
Vating Rights

Holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to ten (10) votes per share at all meetings of stockholders and written actions
in lieu of meetings.

Material Rights
Such rights include, namely:

Distribution rights and preferences: Class A Common Stock participates pro rata with Class B Common Stock in dividends
and distributions in cash or other property on based on the number of shares.. The voting, dividend, and liquidation rights
of holders of Class A Common Stock are subject to and qualified by the rights, powers, and privileges of holders of Series
Seed Preferred Stock.

Liquidation rights and preferences: In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of
the Corporation or any Deemed Liguidation Event, after payment of all preferential amounts required to be paid to holders
of Series Seed Preferred Stock, the remaining funds and assets available for distribution will be distributed among holders of
Class A Common Stock and Class B Commeon Stock pro rata based on the number of shares of Common Stock held by each
such holder.

Dividend rights: The Corporation shall declare all dividends pro rata on the Common Stock and Series Seed Preferred Stock
on a pari passu basis according to the number of shares of Common Stock held by such holders. Each holder of Class A
Common Stock will be treated as holding the greatest whole number of shares of Common Stock then issuable upon
conversion of all shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock held by such holder pursuant to the conversion provisions of the
Certificate of Incorporation.

There are no warrants or stock options associated with Class A Common Stock.

Class B Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 21,000,000 with a total of 14,891,203 outstanding.
Voting Rights

Holders of Class B Common Stock are entitled to one (1) vote per share at all meetings of stockholders and written actions
in lieu of meetings.

Material Rights
such rights include, namely:

Distribution rights and preferences: Class B Common Stock participates pro rata with Class A Common Stock in dividends
and distributions in cash or other property. The voting, dividend, and liquidation rights of holders of Class B Common Stock
are subject to and qualified by the rights, powers, and privileges of holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock.

Liquidation rights and preferences: In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of
the Corporation or any Deemed Liquidation Event, after payment of all preferential amounts required to be paid to holders
of Series Seed Preferred Stock, the remaining funds and assets available for distribution will be distributed among holders of
Class A Common Stock and Class B Commeon Stock pro rata based on the number of shares of Common Stock held by each
such holder.



Dividend rights: The Corporation shall declare all dividends pro rata on the Common Stock and Series Seed Preferred Stock
on a pari passu basis according to the number of shares of Common Stock held by such holders.

The total amount outstanding includes 1,506,797 Options and RSUs issued and outstanding, 34,397 warrants outstanding
(exercisable into Class B Common Stock), and 4,458,806 shares available for issuance under the 2021 Stock Incentive Plan.

Series Seed Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 10,000,000 with a total of 2,637,010 outstanding.
Voting Rights

Holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock may cast the number of votes equal to the number of whole shares of Class B
Common Stock into which the shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock held by such holder are convertible as of the record date
for determining stockholders entitled to vote on such matter. Holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock vote together with
holders of Common Stock as a single class on an as-converted basis and have tull voting rights and powers equal to the
voting rights and powers of holders of Class B Common Stock. Holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock are entitled to notice
of any stockholder meeting in accordance with the Bylaws of the Corporation.

Material Rights
Such rights include, namely:

Distribution rights and preferences: Series Seed Preferred Stock participates with Common Stock on a pari passu basis
according to the number of shares of Common Stock held by such holders on an as-converted basis.

Liquidation rights and preferences: In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of
the Corporation or any Deemed Liguidation Event, before any payment shall be made to holders of Common Stock, the
holders of shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock then outstanding must first be paid out of the funds and assets available for
distribution an amount per share equal to the greater of (a) the Original Issue Price ($0.4757 per share for Series Seed
Preferred Stock) plus any dividends declared but unpaid thereon, or (b) such amount per share as would have been payable
had all shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock been converted into Class B Common Stock pursuant to conversion provisions
immediately prior to such liguidation, dissolution, or winding up or Deemed Liguidation Event. A "Deemed Liguidation
Event” includes certain mergers, consolidations, or asset sales unless the Requisite Holders (holders of at least a majority of
the outstanding shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock) elect otherwise by written notice.

Dividend rights: The Corporation shall declare all dividends pro rata on the Common Stock and Series Seed Preferred Stock
on a pari passu basis according to the number of shares of Common Stock held by such holders on an as-converted basis.

Conversion rights: Each share of Series Seed Preferred Stock is convertible, at the option of the holder thereof, at any time
and without the payment of additional consideration, into such number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Class B
Common Stock as is determined by dividing the Original Issue Price for the series of Series Seed Preferred Stock by the
Conversion Price for that series in effect at the time of conversion (currently 1:1 based on the Original Issue Price of
$0.4757). The Conversion Price is subject to adjustment for stock splits, stock dividends, certain dividend and distribution
events, recapitalizations, and issuance of additional shares of Common Stock at prices below the then-applicable
Conversion Price. Upon either (a) the closing of the sale of shares of Common Stock to the public in a firm-commitment
underwritten public offering or (b) the date and time, or the occurrence of an event, specified by vote or written consent of
the Requisite Holders, all outstanding shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock will automatically convert into shares of Class B
Commeon Stock at the applicable ratio.

Protective Provisions: For so long as at least one million (1,000,000) shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock remain
outstanding (as adjusted for stock dividends, combinations, splits, recapitalizations and the like), the Corporation shall not,
without the written consent or affirmative vote of the Requisite Holders: (a) alter the rights, powers, or privileges of the
Series Seed Preferred Stock in a way that adversely affects the Series Seed Preferred Stock; (b) authorize or create any new
class or series of capital stock having rights, powers, or privileges senior to any series of Series Seed Preferred Stock; (o)
redeem or repurchase any shares of Common Stock or Series Seed Preferred Stock (other than pursuant to certain employee,
director, officer, or consultant agreements); (d) declare or pay any dividend or otherwise make a distribution to holders of
Common Stock unless such dividend or distribution is made proportionately to holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock on an
as-converted to Class B Common Stock basis; or (e) liguidate, dissolve, wind-up the business and affairs of the Corporation,
effect any Deemed Liquidation Event, or consent, agree, or commit to do any of the foregoing.

There are no warrants or stock options associated with the Series Seed Preferred Stock at this time.
Community Preferred Stock
The amount of security authorized is 40,000,000 with a total of O outstanding.

Voting Rights



Holders of Community Preferred Stock may cast the number of votes equal to the number of whole shares of Class B
Common Stock into which the shares of Community Preferred Stock held by such holder are convertible as of the record
date for determining stockholders entitled to vote on such matter. Holders of Community Preferred Stock vote together
with holders of Common Stock as a single class on an as-converted basis and have full voting rights and powers equal to the
voting rights and powers of holders of Class B Common Stock. Holders of Community Preferred Stock are entitled to notice
of any stockholder meeting in accordance with the Bylaws of the Corporation.

Material Rights
Such rights include, namely:
Distribution rights and preferences:

Community Preferred Stock participates with Common Stock and Series Seed Preferred Stock on a pari passu basis
according to the number of shares of Common Stock held by such holders on an as-converted basis.

Liquidation rights and preferences:

In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Corporation or any Deemed
Liquidation Event, before any payment shall be made to holders of Common Stock, the holders of shares of Community
Preferred Stock then outstanding must first be paid out of the funds and assets available for distribution an amount per
share equal to the greater of (a) the Original Community Preferred Issue Price, plus any dividends declared but unpaid
thereon, or (b) such amount per share as would have been payable had all shares of Community Preferred Stock been
converted into Class B Common Stock pursuant to the conversion provisions immediately prior to such liquidation,
dissolution, or winding up or Deemed Liquidation Event.

If the funds and assets available for distribution are insufficient to pay the full preferential amounts owed to holders of
Community Preferred Stock and Series Seed Preferred Stock, the holders of such shares will share ratably, on a pari passu
basis, in any distribution of the available funds and assets in proportion to the respective amounts that would otherwise be
pavable to them.

A “Deemed Liguidation Event” includes certain mergers, consolidations, or asset sales unless the Requisite Holders elect
otherwise by written notice.

Dividend rights:

The Corporation shall declare all dividends pro rata on the Common Stock, Series Seed Preferred Stock, and Community
Preferred Stock on a pari passu basis according to the number of shares of Common Stock held by such holders on an as-
converted basis.

Conversion rights:

Each share of Community Preferred Stock is convertible, at the option of the holder thereof, at any time and without the
payment of additional consideration, into such number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Class B Common Stock as
is determined by dividing the Original Community Preferred Issue Price for such share by the applicable Conversion Price in
effect at the time of conversion. The Conversion Price is subject to adjustment for stock splits, stock dividends, certain
dividend and distribution events, recapitalizations, and other customary adjustments.

Upon either (a) the closing of the sale of shares of Common Stock to the public in a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering or (b) the date and time, or the occurrence of an event, specified by vote or written consent of the Requisite
Holders, all outstanding shares of Community Preferred Stock will automatically convert into shares of Class B Common
Stock at the applicable conversion ratio.

Protective provisions:

For so long as at least three million (3,000,000) shares of Community Preferred Stock remain outstanding (as adjusted for
stock dividends, combinations, splits, recapitalizations, and similar events), the Corporation shall not, without the written
consent or affirmative vote of the Requisite Holders:

(a) alter the rights, powers, or privileges of the Community Preferred Stock in a way that adversely affects the Community
Preferred Stock;

(b) authorize or create any new class or series of capital stock having rights, powers, or privileges senior to the Community
Preferred Stock;

(¢) redeem or repurchase any shares of Common Stock or Community Preferred Stock (other than pursuant to certain
employee, director, officer, or consultant agreements);

(d) declare or pay any dividend or otherwise make a distribution to holders of Commaon Stock unless such dividend or
distribution is made proportionately to holders of Community Preferred Stock on an as-converted to Class B Common Stock



hasis; or

(e} liquidate, dissolve, or wind up the business and affairs of the Corporation, effect any Deemed Liquidation Event, or
consent, agree, or commit to do any of the foregoing.

There are no warrants or stock options associated with the Community Preferred Stock at this time,
Outstanding Shares and Convertible Securities

As of the launch of this offering, there are no shares of Community Preferred Stock outstanding. However, as described
under the SAFE disclosure below, the company has outstanding SAFEs that are expected to convert into Community
Preferred Stock upon the initial disbursement of funds in this offering. For purposes of determining the Company’s
valuation and the offering price per share, the Company has assumed the conversion of such SAFEs and has included
15,506,822 shares issuable upon such conversion in its fully diluted capitalization. Upon conversion, the issuance of these
shares will dilute the ownership percentage of investors in this offering.

SAFE
The security will convert into Community preferred stock and the terms of the SAFE are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $519,141.00
Interest Rate: %
Discount Rate: 10.0%

Valuation Cap: $40,000,000.00
Conversion Trigger: Equity Financing

Material Rights
SAFE Disclosure - Outstanding SAFEs

The Company has issued multiple Simple Agreements for Future Equity ("SAFEs”) that are currently outstanding in an
aggregate principal amount of approximately $7,725,092. All SAFEs are non-interest bearing, have no maturity date, and
are convertible into Community Preferred Stock, the same class of securities being offered in this Regulation Crowdfunding
offering.

Each SAFE automatically converts upon an Equity Financing, which includes the issuance of Community Preferred Stock in
this offering upon the Company's disbursement of funds. As a result, some or all of the SAFEs may convert while this
offering remains open.

Upon conversion, each SAFE will convert at the lower of (i) a 10% discount to the price paid by investors in this offering or
(ii) the price implied by the applicable valuation cap, which ranges from $10,000,000 to $40,000,000. Because the SAFEs
have different valuation caps, certain SAFE holders may convert at a more favorable price per share than investors in this
offering.

The conversion of SAFEs will increase the number of outstanding shares of Community Preferred Stock and dilute the
ownership percentage of investors purchasing securities in this offering. The shares issuable upon conversion of SAFEs
triggered by this offering have been included in the Company’s fully diluted capitalization and price-per-share calculation,
as described below.

SAFE
The security will convert into Community preferred stock and the terms of the SAFE are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $538,812.00
Interest Rate: %

Discount Rate: 10.0%

Valuation Cap: $30,000,000.00
Conversion Trigger: Equity Financing

Material Rights
Please refer to our previous SAFE disclosure.
SAFE
The security will convert into Community preferred stock and the terms of the SAFE are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $541,809.00
Interest Rate: %
Discount Rate: 10.0%



Valuation Cap: $26,000,000.00
Conversion Trigger: Equity Financing

Material Rights

Please refer to our previous SAFE disclosure,

SAFE

The security will convert into Community preferred stock and the terms of the SAFE are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $1,792,855.00
Interest Rate: %

Discount Rate: 10.0%

Valuation Cap: $30,000,000.00
Conversion Trigger: Equity Financing

Material Rights
Please refer to our previous SAFE disclosure.
SAFE
The security will convert into Community preferred stock and the terms of the SAFE are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $2,636,670.00
Interest Rate: %

Discount Rate: 10.0%

Valuation Cap: $23,000,000.00
Conversion Trigger: Equity Financing

Material Rights

Please refer to our previous SAFE disclosure.

SAFE

The security will convert into Community preferred stock and the terms of the SAFE are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $400,770.00
Interest Rate: %

Discount Rate: 10.0%

Valuation Cap: $18,000,000.00
Conversion Trigeger: Equity Financing

Material Rights
Please refer to our previous SAFE disclosure.

SAFE

The security will convert into Community preferred stock and the terms of the SAFE are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $996,235.00
Interest Rate: %

Discount Rate: 10.0%

Valuation Cap: $11,000,000.00
Conversion Trigger: Equity Financing

Material Rights
Please refer to our previous SAFE disclosure.

SAFE

The security will convert into Community preferred stock and the terms of the SAFE are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $298,800.00
Interest Rate: %

Discount Rate: 10.0%

Valuation Cap: $10,000,000.00



Conversion Trigger: Equity Financing
Material Rights

Please refer to our previous SAFE disclosure.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Community Preferred Stock of the Company, vou will have limited rights in regard to the corporate
actions of the Company, including additional issuances of securities, company repurchases of securities, a sale of the
Company or its significant assets, or company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may have
rights less than those of other investors and will have limited influence on the corporate actions of the Company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a company could be diluted due to the
Company issuing additional shares. In other words, when the Company issues more shares, the percentage of the Company
that vou own will go down, even though the value of the Company may go up. You will own a smaller piece of a larger
company. This increase in the number of shares outstanding could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public
offering, another crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, or angel investment), employees exercising stock options, or
by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. If the Company
decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share being worth less than before, and
control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings dilution,
with a reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the Company offers dividends, and
most early-stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the Company).

Transferahility of securities

For a vear, the securities can only be resold:
* Inan PO,
¢ To the company;
* Toan accredited investor; and

¢ Toa member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created
for the benefit of a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce
of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three vears:

& Type of security sold: SAFE
Final amount sold: $1,057,953.00
Use of proceeds: General Operations, R&D, Marketing
Date: August 08, 2025
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

* Type of security sold: SAFE
Final amount sold: $2,334,664.00
Use of proceeds: General Operations, R&D, Marketing
Date: April 19, 2024
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

# Type of security sold: SAFE
Final amount sold: $3,037,440.00
Use of proceeds: General Operations, R&D, Marketing
Date: April 15, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition



You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of our operations together with
our financial statements and related notes appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains
forward-looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results and the
timing of events may differ materially from those contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors,
including those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors™ and elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:

Revenue
Revenue for fiscal vear 2023 was 50 compared to $106,513 in fiscal yvear 2024,

This increase reflects Sircles Media's start of commercial operations in January 2024 when the Company launched its online
Webstore store to sell merchandise to the public, generating revenues of $102,057. Product sales consisted almost
exclusively of a wellness beverage known as The Happiest Hour, which was sold through a joint marketing and profit-
sharing agreement with related party Williams Broadcasting, as described further in the Related Party Transactions section
of this Form C. Branded Sircles merchandise was also sold to a small extent. Sircles also began selling annual and semi-
annual business subscriptions to generate revenues of 33,269, primarily to local businesses where Sircles operates in
sacramento, California. Sircles also held its launch party event in April 2024 that generated revenue of £1,187. Prior to the
launch of the online store and sales of business subscriptions, the Company had not generated any operating revenues.

Cost of Sales
Cost of Sales for fiscal year 2023 was 30 compared to $53,694 in fiscal year 2024.

The increase in cost of sales corresponds directly to the Company's first vear of product sales activity. The $53,694
represents costs of goods sold on product sales, which includes the costs of beverages (primarily the Happiest Hour wellness
beverage sold through the Sircles store) and other merchandise, along with associated freight costs. No cost of sales was
incurred in 2023 as the Company had not yet launched its commercial operations and was not generating revenue.

Gross Margins
Gross margins for fiscal year 2023 were $0 compared to $52,819 in fiscal year 2024,

The improvement in gross margins reflects the Company's commercialization of its platform. The 2024 gross profit of
$52,819 represents a gross margin of approximately 49.6% on product sales ($48,363 gross profit on $102,057 in product
revenue), plus the full amount of subscription and events revenue ($4,456), Direct costs for subscription and events revenue
are not separately tracked and are reflected in general operating expenses. The Company had no gross margin in 2023 as it
had not yet begun generating revenue from its product sales.

Expenses
Expenses for fiscal year 2023 were $1,321,013 compared to $2,049,197 in fiscal vear 2024.

Operating expenses increased by $728,184 (55.1%) between the two periods, driven by significant increases in both major
expense categories:

Research and Development increased from $913,506 in 2023 to $1,109,010 in 2024 (21.4% increase). This increase reflects
continued investment in platform development, app enhancements, and technical infrastructure as the Company
transitions from initial development to an operational focus on user acquisition, engagement strategy, and the refinement
of product market fit.

selling, General and Administrative expenses increased from $407,507 in 2023 to $940,187 in 2024 (130.7% increase). This
increase was primarily driven by a significant expansion in advertising and marketing efforts. Advertising and marketing
expenses increased from $28,073 in 2023 to $445,204 in 2024, representing the Company's strategic investment to drive
early adoption and build community through various partnerships and campaigns throughout the year. Additional increases
in 5G&A include expanded administrative costs to support general operations, and increased stock-based compensation
(520,740 in 2024 vs. 511,700 in 2023).

The overall increase in operating expenses reflects the Company's evolution from a research and development phase in
2023 to more active commercialization and marketing in 2024, consistent with its product advancement and efforts to scale
the business, promote crowdfunding initiatives, and support community adoption.

Historical results and cash flows:

The Company began generating revenue in January 2024, although these early streams serve primarily to demonstrate
commercial viability rather than representing a core long-term monetization strategy. Fiscal year 2023 represented a pre-



revenue development period, while 2024 marked a phase of community growth and exploring revenue streams. As the
platform matures and user acquisition efforts scale, we anticipate that the potential for revenue growth will accelerate
bevond the baseline established in 2024, and that new possibilities for additional revenue streams may emerge. Past cash
was primarily generated through equity investments, specifically through Simple Agreements for Future Equity (SAFE)
offerings under Regulation Crowdfunding and Regulation D. Our primary goal is to drive significant user growth, retention,
and engagement to build substantial enterprise value, rather than prioritizing immediate positive cash flow from
operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand, existing lines of credit, shareholder loans,
ete...)

As of November, 2025, the Company has capital resources available in the form of $199,340 cash on hand. The Company

also maintains ongoing SAFE agreements with investors totaling $6,667,139 as of December 31, 2024, which represent
future equity obligations rather than current capital available for operations.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these funds critical to your company
operations? Or do yvou have other funds or capital resources available?)

We believe the funds of this campaign are critical to our company operations. These funds are required to support
continued user acquisition and marketing efforts, ongoing platform development and feature enhancements, exploring
current and additional revenue streams, and general working capital needs to extend our operational runway as we scale
toward a viable exit strategy.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the total funds that your company has, how
much of that will be made up of funds raised from the crowdfunding campaign?)

We believe the funds from this campaign are necessary to the viability of the Company. To date, the Company has
prioritized aggressive investment in platform development, technical infrastructure, and promotions to support community
building over immediate profitability. As a result, the Company has sustained significant losses ($2,144,615 in 2024 and
$1,292,781 in 2023) and negative operating cash flows ($1,895,486 in 2024 and $1,202,604 in 2023) as disclosed in our
audited financial statements. Our auditors have expressed substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going
CONCErn.

This Regulation Crowdfunding campaign is the primary source of capital intended to fund our next phase of operations. If
the Company raises its maximum funding goal, we anticipate that approximately 99% of the Company’s available capital
will be derived from the proceeds of this offering. We intend to deploy these funds to focus exclusively on product
optimization to achieve a positive viral coefficient ('K-factor'), drive organic user growth, and maximize retention and
engagement. We do not plan to prioritize immediate revenue generation during this period, choosing instead to build long-
term network value that positions the Company for future institutional financing or liquidity events.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What expenses is this estimate based on?

If the Company raises the minimum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will be able to operate for approximately 6
months, This estimate is based on a forecasted monthly burn rate of approximately 360,000, While our historical burn rate
was higher - $157,957 per month - calculated as $1,895,486 negative operating cash flow for 2024 + 12 months), we have
developed a capital efficiency budget for this minimum-funding scenario. In this scenario, we plan to implement broad-
based cost reductions across all operational departments. Most notably, we would substantially scale back promotional and
marketing expenditures to a sustainable baseline level rather than pausing them entirely. The projected $60,000 monthly
burn reflects the optimized costs required to maintain engineering operations, critical infrastructure, and key personnel
essential to platform stability and organic growth. While we believe this projection is achievable, it is forward-looking and
cannot be guaranteed.

How long will you be able to operate the company if yvou raise your maximum funding goal?

If the Company raises the maximum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will be able to operate for approximately
24 months. This is based on a projected monthly burn rate of approximately $172,500. In this maximum funding scenario,
the Company does not intend to significantly expand its fixed engineering headcount. Instead, it plans to allocate the
majority of proceeds toward variable, high-impact growth initiatives designed to build long-term enterprise value.

This capital deployment strategy would focus on ageressive user acquisition & strategic partnerships, where we intend to
secure relationships with high-influence brand ambassadors and strategic partners who possess large, aligned audiences to



drive immediate user density.

We also intend to focus on product optimization & Al efficiency, where we explore the use of artificial intelligence to
augment our current team’s capabilities rather than scaling headcount linearly. We anticipate investing in technical
infrastructure and Al-driven workflows to maintain a lean, high-output core engineering team focused on optimizing the
platform’s viral coefficient ('K-factor’) and retention loops.

We also plan to continue a community-led growth strategy. We view our shareholder base not just as a source of capital, but
as a critical user acquisition channel. A portion of proceeds will be allocated to initiatives designed to expand, engage, and
retain this investor-user community. By successfully scaling our shareholder base through Regulation Crowdfunding, we
aim to build the ‘critical mass’ of supporters necessary to position the Company for potential future capital events, such as a
Regulation A+ offering or public listing.

While the descriptions above outline our current planned use of proceeds, results cannot be guaranteed. Management
reserves broad discretion to reallocate capital and adjust the spending strategy, including pivoting resources between
product development, marketing, and community expansion. This would be based on real-time market feedback, the
effectiveness of specific initiatives, and emerging opportunities.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company? (Required capital contributions, lines of credit,
contemplated future capital raises, etc...)

Currently, the Company has contemplated additional future sources of capital including potential future SAFE offerings,
equity financing rounds, and strategic partnerships or revenue-sharing arrangements. As disclosed in Note 3 of our audited
financial statements, management plans to continue as a going concern by raising additional capital through sales of equity
securities and borrowing as needed to fund operations until the Company establishes a sustainable revenue stream and
becomes profitable.

Indebtedness

The Company does not have any material terms of indebtedness.

Related Party Transactions

¢ Name of Entity: Tech Service 2U, Inc. dba Tech 2U
Names of 20% owners: Commonly controlled by the majority shareholders of Sircles Media, Inc.
Relationship to Company: Related party under common control
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: In 2022, the Company entered into a development and hosting
agreement with Tech 2U for the Sircles Rewards Store for total consideration of $50,000 (fully paid in 2022; $7,917
expensed in 2024, 522,085 expensed in 2023), In 2023, the Company engaged Tech 2U to provide ongoing technical
support and promotional services on a month-to-month contract at a rate of $5,000 per month ($45,000 recognized in
2023 expenses; 35,000 accounts payable as of 12/31/23; $10,000 additional recognized in 2024). In 2024, the Company
engaged Tech 2U to provide project work, ongoing technical support, promotional services, inventory
management/order fulfillment, and other administrative services. The Company paid Tech 2U $40,000 for all project
planning and implementation {expansion of functionality and features of Sircles Webstore). For ongoing support
services beginning March 1, 2024, the Company paid Tech 2U $7,000 per month on a month-to-month contract in
place of the £5,000 per month contract previously agreed upon ($110,000 recognized in 2024 expenses). In 2025, the
Company continued its engagement with Tech 2U for essential operational services, including management of the
Sircles web store, physical product fulfillment (Happiest Hour beverages and branded merchandise), maintenance of
core web products (application admin panel and chat web-view interface), and other administrative functions.
Through November 2025, the Company incurred approximately $63,000 in service fees. In August 2025, Tech 2U
reduced its monthly service fee from 37,000 to £3,500 to support the Company’s capital preservation efforts while
continuing to provide full support. Separately, the Company reimbursed Tech 2U approximately $25,084 for third-
party promotional expenses incurred on the Company's behalf, including direct ad spend via Tech 2U's established
Google Ads accounts and payments for influencer partnerships (specifically @wealth) to drive user acquisition and
downloads.
Material Terms: Services include web hosting, technical support, promotional services, project planning and
implementation related to the Sircles mobile application platform, web store management, physical product
fulfillment, maintenance of core web products, and other administrative functions.

* Name of Entity: Williams Broadcasting
Names of 20% owners: Rob Williams (owner/operator)
Relationship to Company: Rob Williams served as a member of Sircles Media's Board of Directors
Mature / amount of interest in the transaction: In January 2024, the Company entered into a six-month promotional



agreement for $50,000 to promote the Sircles app, increase app adoption and awareness, and promote its
crowdfunding campaign (fully expensed in 2024). Additionally, the Company entered into a profit-sharing agreement
to share 50% of the net profits from the sales of the Happiest Hour wellness beverage through the Sircles Webstore,
Under this agreement, the Company incurred obligations to pay Williams Broadcasting a total of $20,070 for 2024
sales (%1,335 payable as of 12/31/24, recorded as a due to related party liability on the balance sheet). In 2025, the
Company incurred an additional $20,000 in advertising expenses with Williams Broadcasting and $3,770 in revenue-
sharing obligations related to Happiest Hour sales. Mr. Williams' service on the Board of Directors concluded in
October 2025, and the primary commercial engagement with Williams Broadcasting has since been wound down.
Material Terms: Promotional services to drive app adoption and revenue-sharing arrangement on specific product line
sales.

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $34,974,017.00
Valuation Details:

This pre-money valuation was calculated internally by the Company without the use of any formal third-party evaluation.
The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In making this calculation, we have assumed: (i) all
preferred stock is converted to common stock; (ii) all outstanding options, warrants, and other securities with a right to
acquire shares are exercised; and (iii) any shares reserved for issuance under a stock plan are issued.

The Company’s stated pre-money valuation reflects a fully diluted capitalization that includes the shares of Community
Preferred Stock issuable upon the conversion of outstanding SAFEs that are expected to convert in connection with this
offering. Specifically, the Company has included 15,506,822 shares issuable upon conversion of SAFEs triggered by this
offering in its total outstanding share count for purposes of calculating the offering price. The Company currently has an
ageregate of 37,725,092 in SAFEs outstanding, some of which may convert at prices more favorable than the price paid by
investors in this offering. Additional SAFEs that do not convert in connection with this offering, if any, may convert in
future financings and further dilute investors.

Prospective investors should carefully review the Company Securities section of this Offering Memorandum for additional
information regarding the Company's capitalization, outstanding SAFEs, and the dilutive impact of convertible securities.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $19,999.56 we plan to use these proceeds as follows:

& StartEngine Platform Fees
7.5%

& Operations and Working Capital
82.5%
Critical allocation covering general and administrative expenses including team salaries, technology infrastructure,
legal/compliance costs, and inventory management. In this minimum funding scenario, funds are prioritized to extend
the Company’s runway to approximately & months while we seek additional capital.

¢ Product Development and Engineering
10.0%
Maintenance of the core platform, specifically focusing on stability, bug fixes, and organic retention features. We will
forego experimental R&D to focus on the stability of the current application.

If we raise the over allotment amount of $3,942 043,56, we plan to use these proceeds as follows:

* StartEngine Platform Fees
7.5%

* Marketing and User Acquisition
40.0%
Funds will be used to implement and scale advertising initiatives, such as expanding our ambassador team, forming
influencer partnerships, strategic promotional activities, and event sponsorships, among others, to drive user growth
in support of our goal of millions of active users.

* Product Development and Engineering
25.0%
Continued investment in R&D to enhance our patent-pending technology, develop new features, implement Al
technologies, optimize platform performance, and support our engineering team.



& Operations and Working Capital
20.0%

General and administrative expenses including team salaries, technology infrastructure, legal/compliance costs,
inventory for the Sircles Store, and working capital to extend our operational runway as we scale toward a viable exit
strategy.

» Strategic Partnerships and Business Development
7.5%
Resources for forming and maintaining partnerships with businesses, venues, universities, and organizations that
drive platform adoption, expand our network of users and businesses, and create revenue opportunities.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or directors.
Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation Crowdfunding.
Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the report on its website no later than April 30
(120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once posted, the annual report may be found on the Company's website at
www.sircles.com (www..sircles.com/investors).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until:
(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13{a) or Section 15({d) of the Exchange Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and has fewer than three hundred (300)
holders of record and has total assets that do not exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section 4(a)(&) of the Securities Act, including
any payment in full of debt securities or any complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law,

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www._startengine.com/sircles-media
Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a part.
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artesian
CPA, LLC
To the Board of Directors of
Sircles Media, Inc.
Sacramento, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sircles Media, Inec. (the *Company™) which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements of operations,
changes in stockholders”™ deficit, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Ouwur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Substantial Doubt About the Company’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as
a going concern, As described in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Company has an accumulated
deficit of $7,211,100 as of December 31, 2024, has sustained net losses of $2,144.,615 and $1,292,781 and
has negative cash flows from operations of 31,895,486 and 51,202,604 for the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023, both respectively, and has not yet generated substantial operating revenues, These factors,
among others, raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
Management’s plans regarding these matters are also described in Note 3. The financial statements do not
include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
ELTor.

Artesian CPA, LI.C
1312 17t Street, #4062 | Denver, CO 80202
p: 877.968.3330 t 720.634.0905

intof@ ArtestanCPA.com | www. ArtestanCPAucom



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern within one vear after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Misstatements, including
omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
® Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements,

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
ctfectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements,

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related marters
that we identified during the audi.

Mrecon (R LLC

Artesian CPA, LLC
Denver, Colorado
March 10, 2025

Artesian CPA, LI.C
1312 17 Street, #4062 | Denver, CO 80202
p: 877.968.3330 t 720.634.0905

infol@ArtesianCPA.com | www. ArtesianCPA.com



SIRCLES MEDIA, INC.
Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Fserow receivable
Orther receivable
Due from related party
Prepaid expense
Inventory

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets:
Property and equipment, net
Trademark
Toral Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
Current Liabilities:

Accounts pavable and accrued liabilities

Deterred revenue

Due o related party

Loan payable - related party

Sales tax pavable

Total Current Liabilities

MNon-current Liabilities:
SAFE liability
Tortal Mon-current Liabilitics

Total Liahilities

Stockholders' Deficit:

Series Seed Preterred Stock, S0.00071 par, 1000000 shares authonzed,
2,637,010 shares 1ssued and outstanding, and liquidation preference
of §1,254,425 as of both December 31, 2024 and 2023

Class A Common Stock, 300001 par, 9,000,000 shares authorized,
8,000,000 shares issued and outstanding as of both December 31,
2024 and 2023

Class B Common Stock, $O.0001 par, 21,000,000 shares authorzed,
8,881,903 shares outstanding and 9031203 shares issued as of
both December 31, 2024 and 2023

Treasury stock

Addinonal paid-in capital

Subscrip'rinn receivable

Accumulated deficit
Total Stockholders’ Deficir

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

2024 2023

§ 760,102 § 472,547
; 27,658
10,310 .
- 2,795
16,107 10,548
11,694 14,738
798,213 528,286
4,615 6,119
65,0010 65 000
69,615 71,119
g BHT 28§ 509 405
5 100,325 3§ 77,627
41,885 400,462
1,335 1,206
100 100

5,140 ;
148,785 119,395
6,667,130 4,362,375
6,667,130 4,362,375
6,815,024 4 481,770
264 264
8611 860
903 9013
(7,000 (7,000
1,268,042 1,189,158
(65) (65)
(7,211,100} (5,066,485)
(5,948,096) (3,882,365)
§  BG67,828 0§ 599405

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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SIRCLES MEDIA, INC.
Statements of Operations
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Subscription revenues 3

Events revenues

Product sales revenues
Cost of good sold on product sales

Gross profit on product sales

Operating Expenses:
Research and development

Selling, general and administrative

Total Operating Expenses
l.oss from t}p::r;lti:ms

Other Income/{Expense):
Realized gain from U.S. Treasury securities
Unrealized gain/(loss) from U.S. Treasury securite
Interest income

Interest expense - SAFE issuance costs

Total Other Income/{Expense)

Provision for income taxes

Net Loss 5

2024 2023
3,269 % -
1,187 :

102,057
(53,694) -
48,363 -
1,109,010 913,506
940,187 407,507
2,049,197 1,321,013
(1,996,378) (1,321,013)
24,599 33,507
- (3,611)
21 579
(172,857) (2,243)
(148,237) 28,232
(2,144,615) § (1,292,781)

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these

financial statements,
S



SIRCLES MEDIA, INC.
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

/! : ik
Serics Seed Preferred Sk Class A Comimon Stock Class B Commen Stock Treasury Stock II'L:::::: ! Subscription  Accumulated ﬁrnn:;:nl-;eldur{
Sharcs Shares Amount Capital Recervahle Deficae Deficis

Brlance ar December 31, H122 A BAAT S 5 Qi) (F000 % 1014491 % G5 503,773,7040 8§ 2 eed 254
Exercised stock -:.l|1Li.|l|:|.~\. - 34 307 3 - 24 Qa7 25 000
srcck-hased compensation - - 49,670 40670
Net loss ; ; : : : (1,292,781)  (1,292,7R1)
Balanee ar Decembser 31, HI235 &G O EHRE1I DO % a3 (7000 5 1,189,158 % 5 505,060, 4857 8§ (3882 365)
Suoch-based compensation - - T2,850 TZ.830
Warrants - - fi 154 DT
Mot Ligs (2 144,615 (21 615
Balance ar Decembser 31, 2024 8, GO 0 BHBLDOF 5 QK3 (70007 5 1 268042 8 GEy ST 211,100 § 5 4B RG]

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SIRCLES MEDIA, INC.
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating
ACtIVILICS:
Stock-based compensation
Warrants
SAFE issuance costs
Deprecianion
Unrealized gain and accrued interest from U5, Treasury securities
Realized gain from U.S. Treasury securities
Changes in operaring assets and labilities:
Decrease/ (increase) in due from related party
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables
Decrease/ (increase) in prepaid expense
Decrease/ (increase) in inventory
Increase/ (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase,/ (decrease) in deferred revenue
Increase/ (decrease) in sales tax pavable
Increase/(decrease) in due to related party

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of U5, Treasury securitics
Redemption of UL, Treasury securitics

Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of SAFE
SAFE issuance costs
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
MNet cash provided by financing activities

INet change in cash in banks
Net change in cash equivalents
Cash at beginning of the year
Cash at end of the year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest

Cash p:l.id for income taxes

2024 2023
§ (2,144,615 8§ (1,292,781
72,830 49,670
6,054 .
172,857 2243
1,504 1,129
- (1,123)
(24,599) .
2,795 (1,813)
(10,310) )
(5,559 23,226
3,044 (14,738)
23,821 30,377
1,423 -
5,140 -
129 1,206
(1,895,486) (1,202,604)
(3,987)
(997,758) (394,857)
1,121,000 1,071,416
123,242 672,572
2,332,422 -
(172,857) -
i 25 000
2,159,565 25,000
387,321 (505,032)
(99,766) 99,766
472,547 877,813
§ 760,102 § 472,547
$ -8 -
3 -8 -

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these

financial statements,
-



SIRCLES MEDIA, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the years then ended

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Sircles Media, Inc. (the “Company") is a corporation organized on February 12, 2018 under the laws
of Delaware. The Company was originally formed under the name Social Circle LLC as a Delaware
limited liability company. On December 15, 2019, the Company converted from a Delaware limited
liability company to a Delaware corporation and changed its name from Social Circle LLC to Sircles
Media, Inc. The Company is a social media company which operates a mobile networking application,

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP™).

The Company adopted the calendar year as its basis of reporting,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that atfect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Changes in estimates are recorded in the period
they are made. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates inherent in the
preparation of these financial statements include, but are not limited to, esimates of useful lives.

Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Company 1s subject to customary risks and uncertainties associated with the development of new
technology including, but not limited to, the need for protection of intellectual property, dependence
on key personnel, the costs of services provided by third partes, the need to obtain additional
financing, and limited operating history.

In January 2024, the Company launched its mobile networking application. While the product is now
available, there can be no assurance that it will achieve widespread adoption or commercial success.
Commercializing a product requires significant capital, and based on the current operating plan, the
Company expects to continue incurring operating losses and cash outflows from operations in the
near term.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of balance sheet presentation and reporting of cash flows, the Company considers all
unrestricted demand deposits, money market funds and highly liquid debt instruments with an original
maturity of less than 90 davs to be cash and cash equivalents. The Company have no cash equivalents
as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 (see Note 4). As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company’s
cash in bank balances exceeded federally insured limits by $274,382 and $56,119, respectvely,

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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SIRCLES MEDIA, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the years then ended

Short-term Investments

The Company considers all securities with an original maturity of more than three months but less
than a vear to be short-term investments, See Note 4,

Subscription Receivable

The Company records stock issuances at the effective date. If the subscription is not funded upon
1ssuance, the Company records a subscription receivable as an asset on a balance sheet. When
subscription receivables were not received prior to the issuance of financial statements at a reporting
date in satisfaction of the requirements under FASB ASC 505-10-45-2, the subscription is reclassified
a5 a contra account to stockholders” deficit on the balance sheet. As of December 31, 20024 and 2023,
subscription receivable presented as a contra equity account was 305.

Prepaid Expensc
Prepaid expense includes amounts paid in advance for services to be rendered to the Company, As
of December 31, 2024 and 2023, prepaid expense was $16,107 and $10,548, respectively, which

pertains to advance payment for insurance, subscription, and web hosting services from a related party.

Inventory

Inventory consists of products purchased intended for sale. Inventory is carried at the lower of cost
or market and accounted for using the weighted average method. Inventory as of December 31, 2024
and 2023 amounted to $11,694 and $14,738, respectively.

The management regularly evaluates inventory for possible impairment and obsolescence, and
estimates inventory market value based on several subjective assumptions including estimated future
demand and market conditions, as well as other observable factors such as current sell-through of the
Company's products, recent changes in product demand, global and regional economic conditons,
historical experience selling through liquidation and price discounted channels, and the amount of
inventory on hand. When the estimated inventory market value is less than its carrving value, the
carrying value is adjusted to market value and the resulting impairment charge 1s recorded. No
impairment was recognized for the vears ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,

g rand Fguipmen

The Company capitalizes assets with an expected usetul lite of one year or more, and an original
purchase price of $1,000 or more. Property and equipment are recorded at cost when purchased.
Depreciation is recorded for property and equipment using straight-line method over management's
estimate of each asset's useful life. The Company’s property and equipment consisted of computer
equipment with an estimated useful life of five years. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the total
cost was $7,749. Depreciation expense recognized was §1,504 and $1,129 for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectvely. The net carrying value as of December 31, 2024 and 2023
was 34,615 and 56,119, respectively.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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SIRCLES MEDIA, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the years then ended

Trademark

Costs to acquire rights to trademarks are capitalized and amortzed over their expected economic
useful lives, The Company determined that its acquired trademark is an indefinite-live intangible asset
and therefore did not record amortization expense, but assesses for impairment annually, Where the
future benefits of the rights are unknown, these costs are expensed as they are incurred. For the vears
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company recorded no impairment.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

The Company continually monitors events and changes in circumstances that could indicate carrying
amounts of long-lived assets may not be recoverable. When such events or changes in circumstances
are present, the Company assesses the recoverability of long-lived assets by determining whether the
carrving value of such assets will be recovered through undiscounted expected future cash flows. 1If
the total of the future cash flows is less than the carrving amount of those assets, the Company
recognizes an impairment loss based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of the
assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or the fair value less
costs to sell. No impairment was recognized for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) guidance specifies a hierarchy of wvaluation
techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable.
Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs
reflect market assumptions. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 primarily consists
of financial instruments whose value is based on quoted market prices such as exchange-
traded instruments and listed equities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (e.g., quoted prices of similar assets or liabilities
in active markets, or quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that
are not active).

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, Financial instruments are considered
Level 3 when their fair values are determined using pricing models, discounted cash flows or
similar techniques and at least one significant model assumption or input is unobservable.

Financial instruments consist principally of cash, short-term investments, receivables, accounts
payable, accrued liabilities and other current liabilities. The carrying amounts of such financial
instruments in the accompanying balance sheets approximate their fair values due to their relatively
short-term nature. The treasury holdings described in Note 4 were valued using level 1 inputs,

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the years then ended

The Company measures the SAFE agreements at fair value based on significant inputs not observable
in the market, which causes it to be classified as a Level 3 measurement within the fair value hierarchy,
The valuation of the future equity obligations use assumptions and estimates the Company believes
would be made by a market participant in making the same valuation. The Company assesses these
assumptions and estimates on an ongoing basis as addidonal data impacting the assumptions and
estimates are obtained. Changes in the fair value of the SAFE agreements related to updated
assumptions and estimates are recognized within the statements of operations. The future equity
obligations may change significantly as additional data 1s obtained, impacting the Company’s
assumptions regarding probabilities of outcomes used to estimate the fair value of the liability. In
evaluating this information, considerable judgment is required to interpret the data used to develop
the assumptions and estimates. The estimates of fair value may not be indicative of the amounts that
could be realized in a current market exchange. Accordingly, the use of different market assumptions
and/or different valuation techniques may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts,
and such changes could materially impact the Company’s results of operations in future periods, The
Company utilized a probability-weighted average approach based on the estimated market value of
the underlying securities and the potential settlement outcomes of the furure equity obligations,
including a liquidity event or future equity financing. Both the market value of the underlying securities
and the probability of the settlement outcomes include unobservable Level 3 inputs.

During the vears ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, no change in fair value to the SAFE agreements
was recorded as the agreements were entered into with relatively consistent terms across an extended
period of time with third parties, valuation caps exceeded the Company’s estimated valuation, there
were no substantial changes to the Company and its valuation as it remained in a similar stage of
development, and therefore the face value was determined to be representative of fair value. A roll-
forward of the level 3 valued SATE agreements activity and balances over the periods presented is as
tollows:

Balance, December 31, 20022 i) 4 362,375
Balance, December 31, 2023 4. 362,375
Issuance of SAFE agreements 2,304,764
Balance, December 31, 2024 ) 6,667,139

Revenue Recognition

ASC Topic 606, Revenne from Contracts with Customers cstablishes principles for reporting information
about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s
contracts to provide goods or services to customers,

Revenues are recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to a customer,
in an amount that reflects the consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those
goods or services. The Company applies the following five steps in order to determine the appropriate
amount of revenue to be recognized as it fulfills its obligations under each of its agreements: 1) identify
the contract with a customer; 2) identify the performance obligations in the contract; 3) determine the
transaction price; 4) allocate the transaction price to performance obligations in the contract; and 5)
recognize revenue as the performance obligation is satisfied.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the years then ended

As a practical expedient, the Company does not adjust the transaction price for the effects of a
significant financing component if, at contract inception, the period between customer payment and
the transfer of goods or services is expected to be one year or less,

The Company's main revenue stream primarily relates to sales of beverages through their webstore,
with small amounts of other merchandise, events, and revenue recognized from business
subscriptions. Product sales, including beverages and merchandise, are recognized at the point in time
that the items are shipped. Event income is recognized at the point in time that the event occurs.
Subscription revenues are recognized over the subscription period.

Cost of Goods Sold on Product Sales

Costs of goods sold on product sales include the costs of the products sold and associated freight
A

Deferred Revenue

Orders that have been placed and paid as of year-end but have not been fulfilled are recorded as
deferred revenue., Deferred revenue consists of collections from a rewards crowdfunding platform.
In exchange for funds received from the platform, contributors will receive early access to the
Company’s beta app, coupons for Tech 2U services, or favorable placement of their business within
the Company’s app at launch, depending on their contribution amount. Tech 2U, a related party, is
commonly controlled by the majority shareholders of the Company. Deferred revenue was $41,885
and $40,462 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

SAFE Agreements
The SAFE agreements are classified as marked-to-market liabilittes pursuant to ASC 480. The SAFE

agreements are recorded as a long-term liability at their estimated fair value. If any changes in the fair
value of the SAFEs occur, the Company will record such changes through earnings. See Note 5 and
Fair Value of Financial Instruments section of Note 2 above.

Advertising
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.  Advertising expense for the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023 were $445,204 and $28,073, respectively,

Research & Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC 718, Compensation -
Siock  Compensation. Under the fair wvalue recognition provisions of ASC 718, stock-based
compensation cost 1s measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and 1s recognized
as expense ratably over the requisite service period, which is generally the option vesting period. The
Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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The tair value of each stock option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. The Company historically has been a private company and lacks company-
specific historical and implied volatility information for its stock. Therefore, it estimates its expected
stock price volatility based on the historical volatlity of publicly traded peer companies and expects
to continue to do so until such time as it has adequate historical data regarding the voladlity of its own
traded stock price. The expected term of the Company’s stock options is determined utilizing the
“simplified” method for awards that qualify as “plain-vanilla” options. The risk-free interest rate is
determined by reference to the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the tme of grant of the award for
time periods approximately equal to the expected term of the award. Expected dividend vield is based
on the fact that the Company has never paid cash dividends on common stock and does not expect
to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Determining the appropriate fair value of stock-
based awards requires the input of subjective assumptions. The assumptions used in calculating the
fair value of stock-based awards represent management’s best estimates and involve inherent
uncertaintics and the application of management’s judgment.  As a result, if factors change and
management uses different assumptions, stock-based compensation expense could be materially
different for future awards.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes as set forth in ASC 740, Tncome
Taxes, Under the liability method, deferred taxes are determined based on the temporary differences
between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in
effect during the years in which the basis differences reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded when
it is unlikely that the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company assesses its income tax
positions and records tax benefits for all years subject to examination based upon its evaluation of the
facts, circumstances and information available at the reporting date. In accordance with ASC 740-10,
for those tax positons where there is a greater than 50% likelihood thar a tax benefit will be sustained,
the Company’s policy will be to record the largest amount of tax benefit that is more likely than not
to be realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant
mformation. For those income tax positions where there is less than 50% likelithood that a tax benefit
will be sustained, no tax benefit will be recognized in the financial statements. The Company has
cvaluated its income tax positions and has determined that it does not have any uncertain tax positions.
The Company will recognize interest and penalties related to any uncertain tax positions through its
Income tax expense.

The Company may in the future become subject to federal, state and local income taxation though it
has not been since its inception, other than minimum state tax, The Company is not presently subject
to any income tax audit in any taxing jurisdiction, though its 2021-2024 tax years remain open to
eXAMINAon.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842),
This ASU requires a lessee to recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability under most operating
leases in its balance sheet. The ASU is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after
December 15, 2021, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted.
Management adopted this standard in 2022 and adoption of such had no impact on the Company’s

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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financial statements and disclosures as it has no long-term lease agreements.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles - Gooduill and Other (Topic 350), sinplifying
Aeccounting for Goodwil! Impairment. ASU 2017-04 removes the requirement to perform a hypothetical
purchase price allocation to measure goodwill impairment. A goodwill impairment will now be the
amount by which a reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the carrying
amount of goodwill. The amendments in this update are effective for public entities for fiscal vears,
and interim periods within those fiscal vears, beginning after December 15, 2020, For all other entties,
the amendment is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, including interim
periods within those fiscal years. The Company adopted this standard effective in these financial
statements, which did not have a material impact on Company’s financial condition or results of
operations.

Management does not believe that any other recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting
standards could have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements. As new accounting
pronouncements are 1ssued, we will adopt those that are applicable under the circumstances.

NOTE 3: GOING CONCERN

The Company has evaluated whether there are certain conditions and events considered in the
aggregate that raise substantial doubt and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within
one year after the date that the financial statements are issued,

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as
a going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the
normal course of business. The Company has an accumulated deficit of $7,211,100 as of December
31, 2024, has sustained net losses of 32,144,615 and $1,292781 and has negative cash flows from
operations of $1,895486 and $1,202,604 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, both
respectively. These factors, among others, raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to
CONTNUE 4s a going concern,

The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is dependent upon the Company obtaining
adequate capital to tund its operating losses unul it establishes a revenue stream and becomes
profitable. Management has evaluated these conditions and plans to continue as a going concern by
raising additional capital through sales of equity securities and borrowing. Management believes its
plans are sufficient to fund the working capital needs of the Company until the earlier of one year
from the date of the issuance of these financial statements or the occurrence of sufficient future
positive cash flows from operations. Management cannot provide assurance that the Company will
be successful in accomplishing its plans, If the Company is not able to obtain the necessary additional
financing on a timely basis, the Company will be forced to delay or scale down some or all of its
development activities or perhaps even cease the operation of its business. The accompanying
financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary if the Company is unable
to continue as a going concern.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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MNOTE 4: U.S. TREASURY SECURITIES

The Company purchased U.S Treasury securities as follows:
Market Value
December 31

Security type Date purchased Maturity date Purchase price 2024 2023

Short-term

LLS, Treasury Bill  Apnl 17, 2024 October 17, 2024 3 202,219 N/A N/A
L5, Treasury Bill May 03, 2024 Auguse 27, 2024 3 108,152 N/A N/A
US. Treasury Bill  May 03,2024 August 27,2024 $ 98,320 N/A  N/A
LS. Treasury Bill June 25, 2024 December 26, 2024 3 399 3586 MN/A N/A
LS, Treasury Bill  July 24, 2024 October 24, 2024 § 99,681 N/A N/A

Cash equivalent
LLS. Treasury Bill  October 18, 2023 January 18, 2024 3§ 08,043 N/A 399766

The U.S, Treasury securities that matured in 2024 and 2023 were redeemed for a total of $1,121,000
and $1,100,000, respectively. The Company recognized realized gains of 524,599 and 333,507 for the
vears ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectvely, including the $1,123 unrealized gain
recognized in 2023, Interest carned from the ULS, Treasury note amounted to 50 and $362 and for
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

NOTE 5: SAFE

The Company has conducted offerings of Simple Agreements tor Future Equity (“"SAFEsS™) under
Regulation Crowdfunding and Regulation D. The SAFEs have no maturity date and bear no interest.

The SAFEs entitle the holder to convert the SAFEs into the Company™s preferred stock. The terms
provide for discounted (see table below) automatic conversion of the SAFEs” purchase amounts into
the Company’s preferred stock if and upon a qualified equity financing event, which is generally
defined as a transaction or series of transactions involving the issuance of the Company’s preferred
stock at a fixed valuation, including but not limited to, a pre-money or post-money valuation.

In the case of a liquidity event (as defined in the agreement) before the termination of the SAFE, the
SAFE will automatically be entitled to receive a portion of proceeds equal to the greater of (a) cash
cqual to the face value of the SAFE ("Purchase Amount™) or (b) the amount payable on the number
of shares of common stock equal to the Purchase Amount divided by the liquidity price (defined in
the agreement as a share price determined by dividing the applicable valuation cap to the Company’s
then outstanding capitalization).

The SAFEs provide holders with various additional protections, including preferences over
stockholders in a dissolution event for payment of the Purchase Amount and anti-dilution protections.
Upon a dissolution, the SAFEs are junior to debts, senior to common stock, and on par with preferred
stock. If the SAFEs convert into the Company™s preferred stock, it will all have the same rights and
privileges of the preferred stock from the triggering financing, except that the liquidation preference

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report

- 14 -



SIRCLES MEDIA, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the years then ended

will be equal to the Purchase Amount.

During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company issued $2,304,764 and $29,900
of SAFEs and incurred $172,857 and $2,243 of broker fees related to these offerings, each respectively,
which were charged to interest expense due to the indeterminate period of the SAFEs.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company had a total outstanding SAFE liability of $6,667,139
and $4,362,375, respectively, which approximates fair value. No S5AFEs have been converted into
equity, nor have any terminated or expired based on the terms of the agreements. SAFE holders will
receive a number of shares of preferred stock caleulated wsing the method that results in the greater
number of preferred stock: (a) Purchase Amount applied at the discount rate (see table below) on the
price of preferred stock issued to new investors or (b) Purchase Amount divided by the quotient of
the applicable valuation cap and the total amount of the Company’s capitalization at that ome.

Conversion DMscount Valuation Cap 2024 2023 2022 2021 20210

10%% ] L Ch TR0 TR 3 5 3 5 5 EILIRL I[N

1 0% 11 Lk - - - - WU S

| % 18, O D - - - BT

1% 23,0000 N 1,564,951 1,072 50

L% 2 DR L AT LD 24 - - -

10% 30,0060 (00 1.934 664 - - -
§ 2304764 § 20000 § 1564931 0§ 1,472,500  § 1,295,035

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, $0 and $27,658, respectively, of these subscribed SAFEs were
not yet closed out of escrow and therefore were recorded as escrow receivable in the balance sheet,

MNOTE 6: STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

From inception through December 15, 2019, Sircles Media, Inc. (formerly Social Sircle LLC) was a
limited liability company. Social Circles LLC denominated its membership interests as a series of
common unit classifications, which were converted into the newly created classes of stockholders’
cquity in Sircles Media, Inc.

The Company is authorized to issue a total of 40,000,000 shares of stock: (a) 30,000,000 shares of
$0.0001 par value common stock, consisting of 9,000,000 shares of Class A Common Stock and
21,000,000 shares of Class B Common Stock and (b) 10,000,000 shares of $0.0001 par value preferred
stock, all designated as Series Seed Preferred Stock.

Class A Common Stock has voting rights of 10 votes per share and Class B Common Stock has voting
rights of 1 vote per share. Preferred stock is entitled to vote with holders of Class B Common Stock
on an as-converted basis. The voting, dividend, and liquidation rights of the holders of common stock
are subject to and qualified by the rights, powers, and preferences of preferred stockholders.

The preferred stockholders have certain dividend preferences over common stockholders and other
protective provisions. The shares of preferred stock are subject to an optional conversion right, where
shares are convertible into fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class B Common Stock at a 1:1
rate, with certain dilution protections. All shares of preferred stock are subject to automatic

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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conversion into the Company’s Class B Common Stock upon an initial public offering or by vote or
written consent of the requisite holders.

The preferred stockholders are entitled to a liquidation preference over common stockholders of the
greater of: (a) the original issue price of $0.4757 (subject to diluton protection adjustments) plus any
unpaid dividends and (b) on an as converted to Class B Common Stock basis, The total liquidation
preference as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $1,254 425,

Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 2,637,010 shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock were issued and
outstanding,

Class A Common Stock

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 8,600,000 shares of Class A Common Stock were issued and
outstanding.

Class B Common Stock

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 8,881,903 shares of Class B Common Stock were outstanding
and 150,000 shares held in treasury.

Stock Options

In February 2021, the Company adopted the 2021 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan™), which provides
stock awards including incentive and non-statutory stock options to employvees, directors, consultants
and affiliates of the Company. The stock options generally have a term of up to ten (10) vears, or five
(3) vears for incentive stock options issued to stockholders owning more than 10% of the Company.
The stock options are subject to vesting restrictions determined on a case-by-case basis.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company had reserved 1,467,494 shares of Class B Common
Stock for issuance under the Plan, and there were 389 800 and 479 800 shares of Class B Common
Stock available for grant, respectively.

A summary of options activities for the vears ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

Weighted
Average Intrinsic
Options Exercise Value

Outstanding as of December 31, 2022 Q48,297  § 048 §

Crranted 284,397 151

Forfeited {50,000 .48

Exercised 134,397 L73

Expired {135,000 .48
Outstanding as of December 31, 2023 053,297 3 .48 3

Granted 2890000 073

Expired {2000 000 .48
Crursranding as of December 31, 2024 1,045 297 5 .55 5
Exercisable as of December 31, 2023 B37T,094 5 .48
Exercisable as of December 31, 2024 Q68,297 5 .54

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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2024 2023
Weighted average prant-date fair value of options pranted during the year 8 017 8 (.22
Weighted average duration (vears) to expiration of outstanding options at
year-end 7.57 8.28

The following table presents, on a weighted average basis, the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes
option pricing model to determine the grant-date fair value of stock options granted:

2024 2023
Risk-free interest rate 3.92% - 4.19%  4.66% - 5.60%
Expected term (in vears) 5.0-5.2 (LO4-6.4
Expected volatiley A0.00%0 50.00%
Expected dividend yield (.00% (L00%

The total grant-date fair value of the options granted during the vears ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 were 550,530 and 362,100, respectively. In 2024 and 2023, vested options totaling 200,000 and
155,000, respectively, expired three (3) months after the services of the option holders were
terminated. The stock-based compensation expense recognized for the years ending December 31,
2024 and 2023 was $72,830 and $49,67(0, respectively. The unrecognized compensation costs of
$14,400 as of December 31, 2024 will be recognized in 2025,

Stock-based compensation expense was classified in the statements of operations as follows:

2024 2023
Selling, general and administrative 3 20,740 § 11,700
Research and development 52,090 37.970

$ 72830 0§ 49670

stock Warrants

During the yvear ended December 31, 2024, the Company issued 34,397 warrants as compensation to
consultants for services related to investor meetings and fundraising efforts. These warrants were
granted as non-cash consideration and are classified as equity in accordance with ASC 718 (stock-
based compensation). The warrants have a term of 10 years with an exercise price of $0.72 and were
vested immediately.

The fair value of the warrants granted was $6,054, determined on the grant date using the Black-
Scholes valuation model with inputs consistent with those disclosed for stock option valuations
disclosed above. Since these warrants were issued in connection with fundraising efforts, the Company
recorded the full amount as expense in the statement of operations. As of December 31, 2024, none
of the issued warrants has been exercised, and the outstanding warrants remain fully vested and
exercisable. The intrinsic value as of December 31, 2024 was 50,

NOTE 7: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

l'ech 21

In 2022, the Company entered into a web hosting agreement with Tech 2U, a related party under

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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common control, for a total consideration of $50,000, The Company paid the full amount in 2022,
As of December 31, 2023, §7,917 of the consideration was recognized as prepaid expense. The
Company incurred expenses on this agreement of $7,917 and $22,083 for the years ended December

31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

In 2023, the Company engaged Tech 2U to provide technical support and promotional services on a
month-to-month contract at a rate of 35,000 per month. The Company recognized $45,000 of
operating expense for the yvear ended December 31, 2023 under this agreement. As of December 31,
2023, the outstanding amount is $5,000, which is included in accounts payable on the balance sheet.
An additional 10,000 was recognized to expenses under this agreement in the year ended December
31, 2024,

In 2024, the Company engaged Tech 2U to provide technical support and promotional services with
the following terms: the Company will pay Tech 2U $40,000 for all project planning and
implementation described in the agreement. For ongoing management/support, beginning March 1,
2024, the Company will pay Tech 2U 37,000 monthly. The Company recognized $110,000 of operating

expense for the vear ended December 31, 2024 under this agreement.

Cilliams Br in

In January of 2024, the Company entered into two agreements with Williams Broadeasting, owned
and operated by Rob Williams who is a member of the Company’s board of directors, The Company
entered into a six-month agreement for $50,000 to promote the Sircles app, encourage downloads and
app usage, and promote its crowdfunding campaign, with all $50,000 recognized to 2024 operating
expenses. Additionally, the Company entered into a profit-sharing agreement to share 50% of the net
profits from the sales of the Happiest Hour wellness beverage through the Sircles store. Under this
agreement, the Company has incurred obligations to pay Williams Broadcasting a toral of $20,070 for
2024 sales. $1,335 of this amount (relating to December sales) was payable as of December 31, 2024
and recorded as due to related party liabilities on the balance sheet,

NOTE 8: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company may be subject to pending legal proceedings and regulatory actions in the ordinary
course of business. The results of such proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, but the
Company does not anticipate that the final outcome, if any, arising out of any such matter will have a
material adverse effect on its business, financial condition or results of operations,

MNOTE 9: INCOME TAXES

Detferred taxes are recognized for temporary differences between the basis of assets and liabilites for
financial statement and income tax purposes. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company had
net deferred tax assets before valuation allowance of $2,065,460 and $1,404,7606, respectively.

The ftollowing table presents the deferred tax assets by source:

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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2024 2023

Defterred tax asset:

Net operating loss carrviorwards 1,342,261 3 895,719

Book-to-tax differences 314 1,010

Ré&D capitalization differences 528,709 366,628

R&D eredit 194,175 141,409
Valuation allowance (2,065,460) (1,404,766)
Net deferred tax asset i - 5 -

The Company incurs Federal and California income taxes at rates of 21% and 8.84% of gross margin,
respectively, and has used an effective blended rate of 27.98% to calculate the deferred tax assets. The
Company recognizes deferred tax assets to the extent that it believes that these assets are more likely
than not to be realized.

In making such a determination, the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence,
including future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected future taxable income,
tax-planning strategies, and results of recent operations. The Company assessed the need for a
valuation allo